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The Auburn University Historic District occupies 14.5 acres in the northeast 
quadrant of the campus and is located on gently rolling wooded land. The district 
adjoins the Auburn business section at its northeast corner and two of the cities 
major streets, College and Magnolia form the north and east boundaries of the 
district.

The structures encompassed by the district are primarily late 19th and 20th 
Century revival styles. Tlie architectural focal point of the district is Samford 
Hall, a Neo-Romanesque structure with substantial massing, well articulated 
ornamentation and a dominant four-sided clock tower.

The physical unity, strength and vitality of the district is based on certain 
common materials and the different applications found for each. Red brick load bearing 
walls are used almost exclusively, and extensive use is made of limestone for 
ornamentation on sills, lintels, and belt coursings. Terra-cotta ornamentation is 
found on both Samford and the Music buildings. A verticality found in the 
fenestration acts to unify as well as to^ provide a commonality of scale, and a 
heavily wooded park along S. College Street gives further unity to the area.

Though using similar material the one intrusion within the district, Biggins 
Hall, is primarily horizontal and causes a slight disruption in the cohesiveness 
produced by the 19th and 20th Century revival -buildings and the setting.

(Description continued)
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Inventory of Historic Structures Located Within the Auburn University Historic District :

1. Samford Hall (N.W. Corner Thach and South College): 1888, ^eo-^naBes^Lie, three- 
story, red brick, extensive use of terra cotta and liinestone~Tor~ ornamentation.

2. The Lathe (N. of Samford Hall): Early 1860 's.

3. Langdon Hall (W. Side of South College, north of Samford Hall): 1846, two-story, 
frame, remodeled in 1892 to one-story brick, Doric portico.

4. Musie^Building (W. Side of S. College, north of Langdon Hall): 1887-1888, Neo-
(^Romanes^ue^: two -story, red brick, use of terra cotta and limestone ornamentation.^-— —_._.-•--'

5. Broun Engineering Hall (Faces north on W. Magnolia): 1906-1910, four-story central 
section with three- story wings, east and west wings have pilasters supporting simple 
pediments, central portion has portico with Doric columns supporting a well articulated 
pediment.

6. Mary E. Martin Hall (S.E. Corner Thach and Well): 1908, reserved Neo-Baroque, four- 
stories, brick and limestone, two story addition.

7. Music Annex (Power Plant): 1905, two and one-half story brick structure with mansard 
roof, pilasters and ornamental brick cornice work.

8. Langdon Shops (Rear of Langdon Hall): Early 20th Century, one- story, red brick.

9. Biggin Hall (S. College Street): 1951, four-story, contemporary, red brick structure 
(Architecture Building) .
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The district encompasses the earliest section of what is now Auburn University and 
includes the buildings constructed during the early and formative years of Alabama's Land 
Grant College. With one exception (Biggins Hall, 1951) the eight buildings in the 
district date from the 1880 f s to the early 1900 ! s and reflect the revivalist architectural 
styles of that period. Also included in the district is a mid-19th Century lathe donated 
to the college in 1936.

Agricultural and mechanical education in Alabama began with the establishment in 1872 
of a land grant college under the 1862 Morrill Act. Although the site of the school had 
been strongly contested, in February of 1872 the Agricultural and Mechanical College, the 
first land grant college in the south separate from a state university was established at 
Auburn. This location for the new school had been prompted by the donation of a campus 
by the East Alabama Male College, a Methodist sponsored liberal arts school on the verge 
of economic collapse.

During the early years the orientation of the institution remained predominately 
literary and classical. However, the early directors, recognizing the importance of 
conducting agricultural experiments, had established a college farm of 16 acres and 
made arrangements to experiment with cotton and corn in the Tennessee Valley.

But it was not until 1883 that the college, under pressure from the Farmers Alliance 
and the strong leadership of President William L. Broun, embarked on an era of growth and 
became the pioneer institution in technical education in the south. The state's financial 
aid to the college was extended and a tax on fertilizer was established to support and 
maintain the experimental farm.

New buildings were added to the campus; Langdon Hall, a Chemistry and Pharmacy 
Building (Music Building), and Samford Hall. Langdon Hall, which was constructed as the 
auditorium of the Auburn Masonic Female College and was the site of several debates 
between William Lowndes Yancey and Alexander H. Stephens, was disassembled and moved to 
its present location in 1883. The Chemistry and Pharmacy Building was constructed in 
1887-1888 and in the same year Samford Hall was constructed to replace the main building 
of the campus which had burned a year earlier.

In 1890 a department of biology, the first in the south, was added and two years 
later the school admitted its first women students.

During the next 14 years the college was further expanded by the establishment of 
the departments of mechanical engineering, electrical engineering, mining engineering,
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1 VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION
The northern boundary of Auburn University Historic District starts at the southeast 
corner of the intersection of South College and West Magnolia and runs westward alor^g 
West Magnolia for a distance of 700 feet; then south 400 feet; then east 150 feet; then 
south to West Thach Street; then westward along West Thach to the intersection of Mell 
Street; thence 200 feet south; thence east to South College Street, thence north along 
South College to the point of origin.
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veterinary science, pharmacy and horticulture. In view of new curriculum in the fields 
of the sceinces and the arts, the 1899 legislature followed action of the Board in 
changing the name of the institution to the Alabama Polytechnic Institute.

The first decade of the 20th Century saw the college embark on a program of 
construction during which the remaining designated buildings in the district were 
constructed: Broun Engineering Hall, 1906-1910; the power plant (Music Annex) in 
1905; and the library, 1908, now Mary Martin Hall.

In 1960 the school became Auburn University and has continued traditions of 
studies in the arts, sciences and vocations.
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